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PRA User

From: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 8:35 AM
To: Ana Spinola
Subject: Accepted: Briefing on Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community

 



From: Erica Flores on behalf of Heather Ballenger
To: "Bryan Wenter"
Subject: Accepted: Hale property

 

mailto:flores@walnut-creek.org
mailto:Ballenger@walnut-creek.org
mailto:bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com


From: Sandra Meyer
To: Bryan Wenter
Subject: Accepted: Hale property

 

mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com


From: Ethan Bindernagel
To: "Bryan Wenter"
Subject: Accepted: Hale property

 

mailto:EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org
mailto:bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com


From: Steve Waymire
To: Bryan Wenter
Subject: Accepted: Hale property

Have you had any contact since the retirement community discussion?

 

mailto:Waymire@walnut-creek.org
mailto:bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com


 Start Meeting 

From: Zoom
To: meyer@walnut-creek.org
Subject: Ana Spinola invites you to join a Zoom meeting as alternative host
Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 8:24:09 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Hi Sandra Meyer,

Ana Spinola (spinola@walnut-creek.org) invited you to a Zoom meeting as alternative host.

Meeting Topic: Briefing on Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community

Meeting Time: Apr 22, 2020 02:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)

Add to Calendar   Add to Google Calendar   Add to Yahoo Calendar

As a host, you have the ability to start and end the meeting.

If the above button is not clickable, try copying and pasting the following link into the address
bar of your web browser

https://zoom.us/s/96023315071

Or join meeting with the following methods

Phone one-tap

Phone one-tap: US: +16699006833,,96023315071# or +13462487799,,96023315071#

Join by Telephone

For higher quality, dial a number based on your current location.

Dial:
US : +1 669 900 6833 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1
312 626 6799 or +1 646 876 9923 or +1 253 215 8782

Meeting ID: 960 2331 5071

International numbers

Thank you for choosing Zoom.

https://zoom.us/s/96023315071
mailto:no-reply@zoom.us
mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org
http://zoom.us/
https://zoom.us/meeting/tJItdeqrrz4qHdUnPgLxycBUJkBqOo1DYxwY/ics?user_id=4qdABiStRbKM9LMZ6xrCaw&type=icalendar
https://zoom.us/meeting/tJItdeqrrz4qHdUnPgLxycBUJkBqOo1DYxwY/calendar/google/add?user_id=4qdABiStRbKM9LMZ6xrCaw&type=google
https://zoom.us/meeting/tJItdeqrrz4qHdUnPgLxycBUJkBqOo1DYxwY/ics?user_id=4qdABiStRbKM9LMZ6xrCaw&type=yahoo
https://zoom.us/s/96023315071
tel:+16699006833,,96023315071
tel:+13462487799,,96023315071
https://zoom.us/u/aeEKwrXNkC


-The Zoom Team

Copyright ©2020 Zoom Video Communications, Inc. All rights reserved.

https://twitter.com/zoom_us
https://www.linkedin.com/company/zoom-video-communications-inc-
http://blog.zoom.us/


From: Eric Zell
To: Meyer@walnut-creek.org; bindernagel@walnut-creek.org; Steve Waymire
Cc: spinola@walnut-creek.org; Cristina Coley; Troy Bourne; dick@loewke.com
Subject: Briefing on Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community
Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 8:46:54 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandra –
 
Thank you for taking the time on Friday to discuss the proposed Spieker Senior Continuing Care
Facility on the Hale Ranch property immediately adjacent to Walnut Creek.  We are very excited
about this project and look forward to moving forward relatively soon with an application to the
County.  However, before we do so, we would like to set up a meeting with your staff to provide you
a high-level overview of the proposed project and to answer any questions you may have.  If it is
possible to hold this meeting as a Zoom call this week that would be preferable. 
 
Wednesday afternoon, Thursday between noon and 4 and Friday anytime work best for my
schedule.  Troy and Dick, on our team, can also weigh in on their availability.  Cristina Coley, my
scheduler, will work with Ana Spinola, and your team, to find a time that works for everyone.  We
think one hour would be enough time for this Zoom call.
 
Thank you again for taking the time.
 
Eric Zell
Zell & Associates
125 Park Place, Suite 200
Point Richmond,  CA  94801
 
(510) 231-4800 – office
(510) 414-8071 – mobile
 
www.zellandassociates.com
 

mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:bindernagel@walnut-creek.org
mailto:Waymire@walnut-creek.org
mailto:spinola@walnut-creek.org
mailto:cristina@zellandassociates.com
mailto:BourneT@spk.com
mailto:dick@loewke.com


From: Ana Spinola
To: "Eric Zell"; "Troy Bourne"; "dick@loewke.com"; Sandra Meyer; Steve Waymire; Ethan Bindernagel
Cc: "Cristina Coley"; Ana Spinola
Subject: Briefing on Spieker Senior Continuing Care Community

Join Zoom Meeting

https://zoom.us/j/96023315071?pwd=VFQ1YThnWU1tMTlYd3U5dHNZWTZ6Zz09 <https://zoom.us/j/96023315071?
pwd=VFQ1YThnWU1tMTlYd3U5dHNZWTZ6Zz09> 

 

Meeting ID: 960 2331 5071

Password: 626411

One tap mobile

+16699006833,,96023315071# US (San Jose)

+13462487799,,96023315071# US (Houston)

 

Dial by your location

        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

        +1 301 715 8592 US

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

        +1 646 876 9923 US (New York)

        +1 253 215 8782 US

Meeting ID: 960 2331 5071

Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/aeEKwrXNkC <https://zoom.us/u/aeEKwrXNkC> 

 

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


From: Bryan Wenter
To: Sandra Meyer; Ethan Bindernagel
Subject: Hale property
Attachments: ATT21562 1.jpg

120040912192300324.gif

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Conference Number: 
(267) 930-4000  
 
Participants Code:
219-594-584  
 
 
 <http://www.msrlegal.com>   

MILLER STARR REGALIA CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION
This electronic mail message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the addressee(s) named above and may contain information that is
privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not an intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for
delivering this e-mail to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly
prohibited. If you received this e-mail message in error, please immediately notify the sender by replying to this message or by telephone. Thank you.

mailto:bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com
mailto:/o=Walnut Creek/ou=External (FYDIBOHF25SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=2452f5910449460ba4a2f4824820e0a3
mailto:EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org





D MILLER STARR

REGALIA





From: Sandra Meyer
To: Bryan Wenter
Cc: Ethan Bindernagel; Steve Waymire
Subject: Kinross Terrace CC Staff Report 11-16-04
Date: Thursday, April 9, 2020 6:02:25 PM
Attachments: CC Staff Report 11-16-04.doc

In the background section of the attached report it states the following:
 
Other General Plan policies that relate to the proposed project include:
Residential Development Policy 3, allowing infill development consistent with
character of existing neighborhoods; Policy 7, prohibiting land use changes in
residential areas unless findings can be made that character and integrity of
neighborhood is preserved; City Design Program 8.1, Discourage gated
communities and private streets; and Local Street Recommendation and
Improvements, which states that Kinross Drive shall not be connected to Seven
Hills Ranch Road.
 

The language from the 1989 General Plan is as follows (with underlining
added by me):
 
e.         Local Street Recommendations and Improvements
 
Numerous improvements are needed to local streets within the planning
area.  Since individual local streets do not usually play an important role
in the City's overall circulation system, no attempt has been made to
evaluate these streets.  However, in a few circumstances, local streets
were discussed in the planning process because of external factors or
changes from previous City policies.  Because of the lack of arterials, local
streets in some cases may be impacted by non-local traffic and may
warrant traffic diverters or other protective devices.
 
Central Road:  This road (formerly Crokaerts Road) should be retained as
a service street between North Main Street and North Broadway.  Access
should be restricted to right turn in, right turn out at both ends.  Once it
is improved to City street standards it should be accepted into the City
street system.

mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com
mailto:EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org
mailto:Waymire@walnut-creek.org
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Work Order Number Y03-003


Kinross Terrace Residential Subdivision
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Agenda Item No. 



AGENDA REPORT

DATE:
NOVEMBER 16, 2004


TO:
CITY COUNCIL


FROM:
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT ‑ PLANNING


SUBJECT:
P-D REZONING, VESTING TENTATIVE MAP 8457, DESIGN REVIEW APPLICATION NO. Y03-003 – KINROSS TERRACE.  Review of a proposed P-D rezoning and tentative map to accommodate construction of a 12-lot residential subdivision on a vacant 3.58-acre site previously a part of the Diablo Valley Golf Course situated at the end of Kinross Drive, north of Marchbanks Drive (a portion of APN 144-081-006).


STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE:

The applicant is requesting that the City Council approve rezoning of a 3.58-acre site to allow for the development of a 12-unit residential subdivision on a vacant portion of the Diablo Hills Golf Course at the end of Kinross Drive, north of Marchbanks Drive.  The proposed Kinross Terrace rezoning and tentative map has been reviewed at public hearings before the Planning and Design Review Commissions and has been revised a number of times in response to comments received by staff, the neighborhood, and Commissions.  On October 28, 2004, the Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend that the City Council adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration and approve the Kinross Terrace rezoning.


RECOMMENDED ACTION:

The Planning Commission and staff recommend approval of the Mitigated Negative Declaration and the proposed P-D, Planned District rezoning.


DISCUSSION:

Background:  The 3.58-acre project is situated within PD 859, which was adopted in 1966 as part of the Heather Farms development.  PD 859 was approved with a mix of single and multi-family homes up to a maximum of 1,150 dwelling units, a nine-hole private golf course and clubhouse.  The PD allowed clustering of homes on approximately 78-acres throughout the 150-acre site.  The nine-hole golf course and accessory uses (parking, club house, driving range, etc) would occupy the remaining land area.    PD 859 also set aside approximately 52 acres for a city park (future home of Heather Farms park).  At some point in the mid 1970’s the golf course was altered to shorten the 6th hole and redirect the 7th hole, eliminating the proposed project site from active play.  Shortly thereafter, three tennis courts were installed by the original developer at the northwest corner of Marchbanks and Kinross Drives in the proximity of the original 7th hole.  Since that time, the remaining 3.58-acre portion of the site, where the 6th hole was originally located, has remained vacant.


In the mid-1980’s, an application to develop the 3.58-acre site for a 51-unit condominium project was submitted.  A draft environmental impact report was prepared and circulated on the proposed 51-unit project.  The application was, however, withdrawn by the project sponsor prior to any city action.  A proposal in 1996 for 20 units was also withdrawn prior to any city action.  


Project Description:  The project proposes construction of a 12-lot residential subdivision on a vacant 3.58-acre site consisting of 10 detached units and 2 attached units.  Lot sizes for the 2 attached units are 3,916 and 4,992-sqaure feet.  The other ten lots range from 5,476 (Lot 10) to 30,208-square feet (Lot 1).  The average lot size is approximately 11,300-square feet. 


The project is located on land that was previously filled for the 6th hole of the golf course as described above.  Presently the site contains native grasses and a number of trees planted as part of the golf course.     Surrounding land uses include single-family residences on the knoll above to the north, multi-family residences to the east (Stoneridge Apartments), golf course property to the south, and single-family residences below to the west.  A portion of the project site is adjacent to the Seven Hills Ranch property, which is an unincorporated property.  


General Plan Land Use and Zoning:  The 3.58-acre project site is designated MFL, Multifamily Low (6 to 14 du/ac) in the General Plan.   The multi-family low designation envisions higher densities in close proximity to commercial and job centers and to serve as transition between single-family neighborhoods and commercial or higher density areas.  The proposed 12 detached dwellings on 3.58-acres represent a density of 3 units per acre when viewed independently.   Within the context of the entire planned district, a density of 6.6 units per acres is achieved. 


The current PD 859 zoning establishes a maximum density of 1,150 units on approximately 78-acres throughout the 150-acre development.  Currently, the Planned District contains approximately 986 units which would increase by 12 to 998-units should the project gain approval.  The PD allows for a mix of unit types clustered around the private golf course.  The proposed 12-lot subdivision would not exceed the maximum allowable density as established in the existing PD district regulations and would be consistent with the Multi-Family Low General Plan designation of 6 to 14 units per acre.


Other General Plan policies that relate to the proposed project include: Residential Development Policy 3, allowing infill development consistent with character of existing neighborhoods; Policy 7, prohibiting land use changes in residential areas unless findings can be made that character and integrity of neighborhood is preserved; City Design Program 8.1, Discourage gated communities and private streets; and Local Street Recommendation and Improvements, which states that Kinross Drive shall not be connected to Seven Hills Ranch Road.


The project is subject to General Plan Housing Element Policy 13.21 which requires 10% of the units within a for-sale project to be affordable to moderate income households. Based on the provisions in effect during the project review, the project would be required to provide 1 affordable unit.  The applicant has designated Lot 8 as the affordable unit.


Environmental Review:  A proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared and may be considered for recommendation to the City Council (Attachment 3).  Pursuant to the City’s Environmental Review Regulations, the City Council is responsible for adopting the proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) to be used in consideration of the proposed development and P-D, Planned Development Rezoning.  The proposed MND was released for public review on September 28, 2004 and comments were solicited for a 30-day period ending on October 28, 2004. 


The proposed MND evaluated the proposed project and concluded that the proposed project incorporates appropriate measures that would avoid or reduce potential impacts to a less-than-significant level and the project could not have a significant effect on the environment.  Proposed mitigation measures have been incorporated into the Mitigated Negative Declaration for adoption as part of proposed project approval. 


On October 19, 2004, a letter was received, signed by five area residents, requesting reconsideration of the decision to prepare a Mitigated Negative Declaration and specifying a number of concerns (Attachment 4).  In review of the comments received, staff believes that no new information or substantial evidence is presented that the project may cause a significant impact on the environment. A response to these comments is provided (Attachment 5).    

Based on the analysis and discussion contained in this staff report and the administrative record as a whole, staff and the Planning Commission believe that findings can be made to adopt the proposed MND.


Tree Preservation/Removal:  A tree report, dated March 6, 2003, was prepared for the project by Treescapes, Inc. to evaluate on-site trees (Attachment 6).  52 trees were evaluated; 43 on-site and 9 on immediately adjacent off site properties.  Of the 45 trees on site, the project proposes preservation of 20 trees and the removal of 23 .  Compliance with the City’s Tree Preservation Ordinance and the project’s tree report have been incorporated in the projects through mitigation measures contained in the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the project.  All on-site and off-site trees shown on the grading plans to be saved will be protected during construction and will be bonded as set forth by the Tree Preservation Ordinance.


A tree report, dated August 8, 2004, was prepared by Joseph McNeil, Consulting Arborist, to evaluate trees adjacent to the off-site storm drain and sanitary sewer lines under Homestead Avenue and Seven Hills Ranch Road  (Attachment 7).   The report concludes that no trees (other than 2 dead poplar trees) would be removed and that excavation within driplines of trees would be accomplished by hand or with water or air spade.  Compliance with recommendations contained in this arborist report and bonding as required by the City’s Tree Preservation Ordinance have been incorporated into the mitigated negative declaration.  


Referral comments for the City Arborist indicate that of the 23 proposed on-site tree removals, 19 trees comply with criteria for removal and can be authorized by staff.  The remaining 5 trees to be removed (474, 485, 488, 1814, 1815) are highly protected Valley Oaks and require City Council approval.  These trees are identified as being in reasonably good health but would be impacted by the proposed development.


The City Council, as the highest approving body, must consider the Tree Removal and Dripline Encroachment Permit applications for trees that have not been approved by the City Arborist for removal.  The City Council may approve the removal or dripline encroachment permit for, a highly protected tree only if it finds that the burden to the applicant in not removing or encroaching within the dripline greatly outweighs the benefit to the public and that not removing or encroaching within the dripline of the tree would severely reduce the scale or feasibility of the development.  


The Planning Commission and staff believe that the City Council can make the required findings for removal of the 5 on-site trees and for the dripline encroachments due to the site constraints associated with preserving wet land areas and open spaces throughout the site, and removing the non-engineered fill soil that was installed in the 1960’s with the development of the golf course.  These constraints limit development of the site requiring greater land area to achieve desirable residential densities.  


Preliminary landscape plans indicate that approximately 20 London Plane, 12 Flowering Pear tree  in 24-inch box size.  The plan also provides over 60 15-gallon trees throughout the site including Japanese Maple, Camphor, Evergreen Dogwood, Raywood Ash, Crape Myrtle, and Coast Redwood trees.  The resulting tree planting will result in a net increase in tree cover.  With the additional trees provided, the Commission believes that the proposed landscape plan will appropriately address the mitigation for the tree removals and provide tree plantings consistent with the surrounding neighborhood.  Findings and conditions contained in the attached draft resolution support the tree removal, dripline encroachments, and preservation plan.


Sewer and Storm Water Drainage:  In the initial phase of development review the project proposed a sewer pump and an on-site, underground storm water retention system.  Referral comments from the City Engineering Division and the County Sanitation District recommended revisions to the proposed utility services to provide gravity systems.  In response, the applicant has revised their plan to provide gravity systems to existing off-site facilities through easements on private property.  A new 8-inch sewer line serving the proposed development would be routed to the west through an adjacent residential lot (Collins property), to an existing 6-inch sewer line in Homestead Avenue.  A new 15-inch storm water pipe would be routed westerly, again through the Collins property, northerly along Homestead Avenue, then westerly along Seven Hills Ranch Road to discharge into an existing creek.


While these off-site utilities function hydraulically, the underground lines cross private property and require easements.  The applicant has stated that they are working with the Collins property owners to secure an easement,  although it has not been finalized or recorded.  In addition, research has revealed that Homestead Avenue and Seven Hills Ranch Road, while appearing as public roads, have never been dedicated or accepted by either the City or County and remain privately held property.  As specified in the Mitigated Negative Declaration, the City would not condemn off-site private properties to satisfy requirements for a private development.  Mitigation measures require that the applicant secure the necessary off-site easements prior to approval of a final map.


Reduced width of Kinross Drive:  In the applicant’s initial discussions with neighbors in the vicinity of the project site, concerns about parking and inappropriate activities on the dead end portion of Kinross Drive were raised.    There was a general consensus of surrounding neighbors that narrowing the roadway would reduce or eliminate the perceived nuisance.  The applicant offered to reduce the width of the public street as part of this development proposal to eliminate parking on one side of the street.  

Comments received from residents on the Mitigated Negative Declaration question the project’s proposal to reduce the width of Kinross Drive citing the loss of street parking adjacent to neighborhood serving tennis courts.   Staff noted that both the reduced and current widths are consistent with City roadway standards.  The Planning Commission determined that the current street width was consistent with the surrounding streets and provided more street parking.  The Commission also felt that the project provides an active use and would eliminate nuisance activities associated with the dead end street.   In moving to approve the Tentative Map, the Planning Commission specified that the public Kinross Drive should remain at its current width.    


Precedent for further golf course development:  Comments from area residents received through out the review process expressed concern that this development proposal would set a precedent for further development of the private Diablo Hills Golf Course.   Comments received on the Mitigated Negative Declaration requested that a condition be established with this development that would prohibit any further development of the golf course.   While the Planning Commission acknowledged they could not place a condition on the private golf course with this application, they did add a finding to the proposed rezoning recommendation expressing strong support for preservation of the golf course and noting the context of the approval recommendation is based on the projects unique site characteristics along a dead end street and having been historically removed from active golf course use.  


DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:

1. Location Map


2. Project Plans


3. Mitigated Negative Declaration and Initial Study


4. Comment Letters and Responses


5. Tree Report (on-site trees), prepared by Treescapes, Inc. dated March 2003


6. Tree Report (off-site trees), prepared by Joseph McNeil Consulting Arborist, dated August 2004


7. October 28, 2004 Planning Commission staff report


8. Planning Commission Resolution 3329 (Recommendation on Rezoning)


9. Planning Commission Resolution 3330 (Tent Map approval, subject to Council action)


10. Proposed P-D, Planned Development Ordinance


11. City Council Resolution (Mitigated Neg Dec and Tree Removal)


COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:

1. Move to adopt the Resolution approving the Mitigated Negative Declaration and Tree Removal Permit, and 


2. Move to introduce and waive further reading of the proposed Planned Development Ordinance and Rezoning


Prepared By:  Scott Harriman, AICP


________________________________
_______________________________


Planning Manager


Community Development Director


________________________________


Approved By:


City Manager


H:\Scott Harriman\Kinross Terrace Subdivision\CC Staff Report 11-16-04.doc



 
Commercial Lane:  Commercial Lane should be maintained as a Service
roadway providing delivery service to business on Main Street and Locust
Street.
 
Kinross Drive:  Kinross Drive shall not be connected to Seven Hills Ranch
Road.
 

I’m assuming that is why Kinross Drive did not go all the way to the Hale Ranch
property but it seems like the City should have ownership of the “spite” strip
then.
 
The 1989 General Plan language did not get carried forward to the 2025
General Plan and the only thing that would still refer to Kinross not being
allowed to connect to a roadway on the Hale property would be the following
goal:
 

GOAL 4 Protect residential neighborhoods from through-traffic,
speeding, and nonresidential parking. Policy 4.1. Manage arterial and
collector traffic to minimize adverse affects on neighborhoods. Policy
4.2. Discourage through-traffic on local streets and collectors.
 

I’m assuming that a traffic study as part of the EIR for the project could
determine whether or not Kinross would become significantly impacted with
“through” traffic such that the City could allow the roadway to connect.
However, that doesn’t mean that the Marchbanks HOA’s would not oppose the
roadway being connected and put political pressure on not allowing it.



From: Eric Zell
To: meyer@ci.walnut-creek.ca.us; Sandra Meyer AICP
Subject: Question
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 2:07:05 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Sandy-

Hope you and the family are well. Are you available for a quick call? Need to get some information as part of the
due diligence on the Senior Development project on Hale Ranch.  I don’t have a mobile number for you.

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:meyer@ci.walnut-creek.ca.us
mailto:meyerfam@astound.net


From: Bryan Wenter
To: Steve Waymire
Subject: RE: Hale property
Date: Thursday, April 9, 2020 10:59:08 AM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

This is senior living, fyi.
 
-----Original Appointment-----
From: Steve Waymire [mailto:Waymire@walnut-creek.org] 
Sent: Thursday, April 09, 2020 9:49 AM
To: Bryan Wenter
Subject: Accepted: Hale property
When: Thursday, April 09, 2020 8:00 PM-9:00 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
Where: Call
 
 
 
 

MILLER STARR REGALIA CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION
This electronic mail message and any attachments are intended only for the use of the addressee(s) named above and may contain
information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not an intended recipient, or the
employee or agent responsible for delivering this e-mail to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you received this e-mail message in error, please immediately notify
the sender by replying to this message or by telephone. Thank you.

mailto:bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com
mailto:Waymire@walnut-creek.org
mailto:Waymire@walnut-creek.org
http://www.msrlegal.com/


From: Steve Waymire
To: Bryan Wenter
Subject: RE: Kinross Terrace CC Staff Report 11-16-04
Date: Wednesday, April 15, 2020 2:04:22 PM

I am just referring to the docs you gave us.
 
 

From: Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 15, 2020 1:41 PM
To: Steve Waymire <Waymire@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: RE: Kinross Terrace CC Staff Report 11-16-04
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Any chance we can get a copy of the documents?
 
Thanks,
 
Bryan
 

From: Steve Waymire [mailto:Waymire@walnut-creek.org] 
Sent: Tuesday, April 14, 2020 11:36 AM
To: Bryan Wenter
Subject: RE: Kinross Terrace CC Staff Report 11-16-04
 
Brian,  I have never seen anything like this.  I guess you were right, it was put in place to keep the
right of way from abutting the property.
 
 
 

From: Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 14, 2020 10:48 AM
To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: Ethan Bindernagel <EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org>; Steve Waymire <Waymire@walnut-
creek.org>
Subject: RE: Kinross Terrace CC Staff Report 11-16-04
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

 
Here is the prelim.
 
Looks to me like Subdivision Map 4006 (7 sheets), recorded 6/11/70, that matches a grant deed to
the City dated May 14, 1970.

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


 
The City Clerk’s acceptance of the grant deed says it was approved by “order” of the City Council on
June 20, 1970.
 
The City Engineer’s Certificate indicates the final map was based on a tentative map approved by the
Planning Commission on February 24, 1970.
 
Assuming the City still has title to the land?  Would be helpful to see the Planning Commission and
City Council documents related to the above.
 
Thanks,
 
Bryan
 

From: Sandra Meyer [mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org] 
Sent: Monday, April 13, 2020 6:10 PM
To: Bryan Wenter
Cc: Ethan Bindernagel; Steve Waymire
Subject: RE: Kinross Terrace CC Staff Report 11-16-04
 
Hi Bryan – just checking to make sure that you got the information I sent below?
 

Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic Development Director
City of Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main Street
Walnut Creek, CA  94595
(925) 943-5836
meyer@walnut-creek.org
 

From: Sandra Meyer 
Sent: Thursday, April 9, 2020 6:02 PM
To: Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>
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
Date: Wednesday, April 15, 2020 1:40:59 PM

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
Date: Tuesday, April 14, 2020 11:35:35 AM

Brian,  I have never seen anything like this.  I guess you were right, it was put in place to keep the
right of way from abutting the property.
 
 
 

From: Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 14, 2020 10:48 AM
To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Cc: Ethan Bindernagel <EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org>; Steve Waymire <Waymire@walnut-
creek.org>
Subject: RE: Kinross Terrace CC Staff Report 11-16-04
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

 
Here is the prelim.
 
Looks to me like Subdivision Map 4006 (7 sheets), recorded 6/11/70, that matches a grant deed to
the City dated May 14, 1970.
 
The City Clerk’s acceptance of the grant deed says it was approved by “order” of the City Council on
June 20, 1970.
 
The City Engineer’s Certificate indicates the final map was based on a tentative map approved by the
Planning Commission on February 24, 1970.
 
Assuming the City still has title to the land?  Would be helpful to see the Planning Commission and
City Council documents related to the above.
 
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
 
Hi Bryan – just checking to make sure that you got the information I sent below?
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
 

From: Sandra Meyer 
Sent: Thursday, April 9, 2020 6:02 PM
To: Bryan Wenter <bryan.wenter@msrlegal.com>
Cc: Ethan Bindernagel <EBindernagel@walnut-creek.org>; Steve Waymire <Waymire@walnut-
creek.org>
Subject: Kinross Terrace CC Staff Report 11-16-04
 

In the background section of the attached report it states the following:
 
Other General Plan policies that relate to the proposed project include:
Residential Development Policy 3, allowing infill development consistent with
character of existing neighborhoods; Policy 7, prohibiting land use changes in
residential areas unless findings can be made that character and integrity of
neighborhood is preserved; City Design Program 8.1, Discourage gated
communities and private streets; and Local Street Recommendation and
Improvements, which states that Kinross Drive shall not be connected to Seven
Hills Ranch Road.
 

The language from the 1989 General Plan is as follows (with underlining
added by me):
 
e.         Local Street Recommendations and Improvements
 
Numerous improvements are needed to local streets within the planning
area.  Since individual local streets do not usually play an important role
in the City's overall circulation system, no attempt has been made to
evaluate these streets.  However, in a few circumstances, local streets
were discussed in the planning process because of external factors or
changes from previous City policies.  Because of the lack of arterials, local
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streets in some cases may be impacted by non-local traffic and may
warrant traffic diverters or other protective devices.
 
Central Road:  This road (formerly Crokaerts Road) should be retained as
a service street between North Main Street and North Broadway.  Access
should be restricted to right turn in, right turn out at both ends.  Once it
is improved to City street standards it should be accepted into the City
street system.
 
Commercial Lane:  Commercial Lane should be maintained as a Service
roadway providing delivery service to business on Main Street and Locust
Street.
 
Kinross Drive:  Kinross Drive shall not be connected to Seven Hills Ranch
Road.
 

I’m assuming that is why Kinross Drive did not go all the way to the Hale Ranch
property but it seems like the City should have ownership of the “spite” strip
then.
 
The 1989 General Plan language did not get carried forward to the 2025
General Plan and the only thing that would still refer to Kinross not being
allowed to connect to a roadway on the Hale property would be the following
goal:
 

GOAL 4 Protect residential neighborhoods from through-traffic,
speeding, and nonresidential parking. Policy 4.1. Manage arterial and
collector traffic to minimize adverse affects on neighborhoods. Policy
4.2. Discourage through-traffic on local streets and collectors.
 

I’m assuming that a traffic study as part of the EIR for the project could
determine whether or not Kinross would become significantly impacted with
“through” traffic such that the City could allow the roadway to connect.
However, that doesn’t mean that the Marchbanks HOA’s would not oppose the
roadway being connected and put political pressure on not allowing it.
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From: Bryan Wenter
To: Sandra Meyer
Cc: Ethan Bindernagel; Steve Waymire
Subject: RE: Kinross Terrace CC Staff Report 11-16-04
Date: Tuesday, April 14, 2020 10:48:53 AM
Attachments: AMENDED PRELIM-LINKED 8-16-2019(102273969_1).pdf

Kinross Drive ALTA Survey Blow-up.pdf
Vesting Deed - Lot A.PDF
131 M 22_Tract 4006.pdf

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
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Chicago Title Company 


2150 John Glenn Dr, Suite 400, , Concord, CA 94520
Phone:  (925) 288-8000  ●  Fax:  


CLTA Preliminary Report Form (Modified 11/17/06) Last Saved:  8/23/2019 9:13 AM by MO2 
lPrelm (DSI Rev. 03/11/19) Page 1 Order No.: 15606633-156-TJK-JM


Issuing Policies of Chicago Title Insurance Company


Order No.:  15606633-156-TJK-JM


TO:
Chicago Title Company 
455 Market Street, Suite 2100
San Francisco, CA 94105
Phone:  (415) 788-0871
ATTN:  Terina J. Kung


Title Officer: Jeff Martin


Escrow Officer: Terina J. Kung
455 Market Street, Suite 2100
San Francisco, CA 94105
(415) 788-0871


PROPERTY ADDRESS: Seven Hills Ranch, Walnut Creek, CA
     


AMENDED PRELIMINARY REPORT
In response to the application for a policy of title insurance referenced herein, Chicago Title Company hereby 
reports that it is prepared to issue, or cause to be issued, as of the date hereof, a policy or policies of title 
insurance describing the land and the estate or interest therein hereinafter set forth, insuring against loss which 
may be sustained by reason of any defect, lien or encumbrance not shown or referred to as an exception herein 
or not excluded from coverage pursuant to the printed Schedules, Conditions and Stipulations or Conditions of 
said policy forms.


The printed Exceptions and Exclusions from the coverage and Limitations on Covered Risks of said policy or 
policies are set forth in Attachment One. The policy to be issued may contain an arbitration clause. When the 
Amount of Insurance is less than that set forth in the arbitration clause, all arbitrable matters shall be arbitrated at 
the option of either the Company or the Insured as the exclusive remedy of the parties. Limitations on Covered 
Risks applicable to the CLTA and ALTA Homeowner’s Policies of Title Insurance which establish a Deductible 
Amount and a Maximum Dollar Limit of Liability for certain coverages are also set forth in Attachment One. 
Copies of the policy forms should be read. They are available from the office which issued this report.


This report (and any supplements or amendments hereto) is issued solely for the purpose of facilitating the 
issuance of a policy of title insurance and no liability is assumed hereby. If it is desired that liability be assumed 
prior to the issuance of a policy of title insurance, a Binder or Commitment should be requested. 


The policy(s) of title insurance to be issued hereunder will be policy(s) of Chicago Title Insurance Company, a 
Florida corporation.


Please read the exceptions shown or referred to herein and the exceptions and exclusions set forth in 
Attachment One of this report carefully. The exceptions and exclusions are meant to provide you with 
notice of matters which are not covered under the terms of the title insurance policy and should be 
carefully considered.


It is important to note that this preliminary report is not a written representation as to the condition of title 
and may not list all liens, defects and encumbrances affecting title to the land.
Chicago Title Company


By:  
Authorized Signature







Chicago Title Company 


2150 John Glenn Dr, Suite 400, , Concord, CA 94520
Phone:  (925) 288-8000  ●  Fax:  


CLTA Preliminary Report Form (Modified 11/17/06) Last Saved:  8/23/2019 9:13 AM by MO2 
lPrelm (DSI Rev. 03/11/19) Page 2 Order No.: 15606633-156-TJK-JM


AMENDED PRELIMINARY REPORT


EFFECTIVE DATE: August 16, 2019 at 7:30 a.m., Amended: August 21, 2019, Amendment No. A 


ORDER NO.:  15606633-156-TJK-JM


The form of policy or policies of title insurance contemplated by this report is:


ALTA Extended Owners Policy (6-17-06)


1. THE ESTATE OR INTEREST IN THE LAND HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED OR REFERRED TO 
COVERED BY THIS REPORT IS:


A FEE, as to TRACT ONE, Parcel One, TRACT TWO, TRACT THREE and TRACT FOUR, 
AN EASEMENT, as to TRACT ONE, Parcel Two  


2. TITLE TO SAID ESTATE OR INTEREST AT THE DATE HEREOF IS VESTED IN:


Seven Hills Ranch I, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, by Grant Deed recorded July 30, 
2018, Instrument No. 2018-120887, Official Records, as to TRACT ONE, and 


Seven Hills Ranch II, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, by Grant Deed recorded May 6, 
2019, Instrument No. 2019-64218, Official Records, as to TRACT TWO, and


The Walden Company, a corporation, Western Mortgage and Guaranty Company, Seven Hills 
Ranch I, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company and Seven Hills Ranch II, LLC, a Delaware 
Limited Liability Company, all as their interests may be judicially determined, as to TRACT THREE 
AND FOUR


3. THE LAND REFERRED TO IN THIS REPORT IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:


See Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.
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Chicago Title Company


CLTA Preliminary Report Form (Modified 11/17/06) Last Saved:  8/23/2019 9:13 AM by MO2 
lPrelm (DSI Rev. 03/11/19) Page 3 Order No.: 15606633-156-TJK-JM


EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION


THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE CITY OF WALNUT CREEK, IN THE 
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:


Real property located partially in the unincorporated area of the County of Contra Costa, and partially within the 
City of Walnut Creek, State of California, described as follows:


TRACT ONE:


Parcel One:


Portion of Lots 25 and 39 and portion of an unnumbered tract of land lying to the West of said Lots 25 and 39, all 
as designated on the Map entitled "Map No. 1, Walnut Park Lands of Walnut Creek Development Company", 
which Map was filed in the office of the recorder of the County of Contra Costa, State of California, on June 20, 
1910 in Volume 3 of Maps, at Page 56, described as follows:


Beginning at an iron pipe at the most Easterly corner of the 1.298 acre parcel of land described in the deed from 
Idolene Hooper Hale Ewell to Fred Newton, dated January 3, 1935 and recorded January 15, 1935 in Volume 381 
of Official Records, at Page 317, said point of beginning being on a fence line of the North line of a 12 feet in 
width roadway, said point of beginning being hereinafter referred to as "Station A"; thence from said point of 
beginning North 77° 36' 30" East along said fence line, being along the North line of said roadway, 305.14 feet to 
a 2 inch by 2 inch stake; thence leaving said fence line and following the Northerly, Westerly and Northerly line of 
said roadway as follows:


Easterly along the arc of a curve to the left with a radius of 175 feet, tangent to the last course, 98.76 feet to a 
point from which the center of a compound curve to the left with a radius of 90 feet bears North 44° 53' 30" West; 
Northerly along the arc of said last mentioned curve with a radius of 90 feet, an arc distance of 60.40 feet; North 
6° 39' 30" East tangent to the last curve, 90.04 feet to a 2 inch by 2 inch stake; North 4° 52' 30" West, 154.92 feet; 
Northerly and Easterly along the arc of a curve to the right with a radius of 70 feet, tangent to the last course, 
128.13 feet and South 80° East tangent to the last curve, 143.20 feet to a 2 inch by 2 inch stake and a point 
hereinafter referred to as "Station B"; thence North 31° 31' East, 97.78 feet to a nail in water tank of a fence line; 
thence North 61° 11' 30° West along said fence line and along the extension North 61° 11' 30" West thereof at 
205.95 feet, a 2 inch by 2 inch stake at 511 feet, a 2 inch by 2 inch stake, a total distance of 589.63 feet to the 
North line of said Lot 39; thence along said North line South 72° 19' 30' West, 370.93 feet and North 75° 50' West, 
151 feet to the East line of said Lot 25; thence along the North line of said Lot 25, North 75° 50' West, 97 feet and 
South 50° 26' West, 87 feet to an angle point in the East line of the parcel of land described in the deed from 
Idolene Hooper Hale Ewell to Jennings E. Heffelfinger, dated June 28, 1933 and recorded June 30, 1933 in 
Volume 345 of Official Records, at Page 240; thence along said East line South 40° 05' 15" West, 110.75 feet; 
South 5° 36' 45° West, 160.6 feet; South 28° 35' 15" East, 237.32 feet and South 13° 49' 45" West, 91 feet to an 
angle point on the North line of the 1.473 acre parcel of land described in the deed from Idolene Hooper Hale 
Ewell to W.H. George, dated September 25, 1934 and recorded September 27, 1934 in Volume 367 of Official 
Records, at Page 444; thence South 77° 38' East along said North line, 41.62 feet to the most Northerly corner of 
said 1.298 acre Newton parcel (381 or 317); thence along the North line of said Newton parcel (381 or 317) being 
along a fence line South 77° 38' East 252.9 feet and South 70° 53' 30" East, 204.2 feet to an iron pipe on the East 
line of said Newton parcel (381 or 317); thence South 12° 47' East along said East line, being along a fence line, 
49.7 feet to the point of beginning.


Excepting from Parcel One:


1) That portion thereof described in the deed to Contra Costa County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District, Recorded June 19, 1969, Book 5902, Page 259 of Official Records.


2) All water rights as reserved in the deed from Anne Fish Burgess (formerly Annie Webster Fish), recorded May 
2, 1910, Book 153 of deeds, Page 261.
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Parcel Two:


The right of way created as an appurtenance to Parcel One above in the deed to Sheridan Winfield Hale, 
recorded January 13, 1950, Book 1490, Page 442 of Official Records, as follows:


"A right of way (not to be exclusive) as an appurtenance to the 15.4 acre parcel of land described as Parcel One 
above, for use as a roadway for vehicles of all kinds, pedestrians and animals, for water, gas, oil and sewer pipe 
lines, and for telephone, electric light and power lines, together with the necessary poles or conduits to carry said 
lines over the following described strips of land:


(a) A strip of land 12 feet in width, the Southerly and Easterly line of which is parallel with and 12 feet Southerly 
and Easterly, measured at right angles form the Northerly and Westerly line thereof and which Northerly and 
Westerly line is the Southerly and Easterly line of the parcel of land described as Parcel One above, between 
"Station A" and "Station B", as said stations are designated in the description of said Parcel One above. 
(b) A strip of land 12 feet in width, the South line of which is parallel with and 12 feet Southerly, measured at right 
angles from the North line thereof and which North line is described as follows:


Beginning at "Station A", as said station is designated in the description of Parcel One above; thence from said 
point of beginning South 77° 33' West along the South line of the 1.298 acre parcel of land described in the deed 
from Idolene Hooper Hale Ewell to Fred Newton, dated January 3, 1935 and recorded January 15, 1935 in 
Volume 381 of Official Records, at Page 317, 348.67 feet to the South line of the 45.15 acre parcel of land 
described as Parcel Two in the deed from J.B. John, et ux, to Idolene Hooper Hale, dated March 15, 1927 and 
recorded March 24, 1928, in Volume 133 of Official Records, at Page 220.


The Westerly extremity of said 12 foot strip shall coincide with the South line of said 45.15 acre Hale parcel (133 
or 220).


APN: 172-150-012


TRACT TWO:


Parcel One: 


Lots 40 and 41 as designated on the Map entitled "Map No. 1, Walnut Park Lands of Walnut Creek Development 
Company," which Map was filed in the office of the Recorder of the County of Contra Costa, State of California, on 
June 20, 1910, in Volume 3 of Maps, at Page 56.


Parcel Two:


Portion of Lots 25 and 39 and portion of an unnumbered tract of land lying to the West of said Lots 25 and 39, all 
as designated on the Map entitled "Map No. 1, Walnut Park Lands of Walnut Creek Development Company," 
which Map was filed in the office of the Recorder of the County of Contra Costa, State of California, on June 20, 
1910, in Volume 3 of Maps, at Page 56, described as follows:


Beginning at the most Northerly corner of said Lot 39; thence from said point of beginning along the Northwest 
line of said Lot 39, as follows: South 45 degrees 05 minutes West, 78 feet; South 7 degrees 36 minutes West, 75 
feet; South 72 degrees 19 minutes 30 seconds West, 467 feet and North 75 Degrees 50 minutes West, 151 feet 
to the East line of said Lot 25; thence along the North line of said Lot 25, North 75 degrees 50 minutes West, 97 
feet and South 50 degrees 26 minutes West, 87 feet to an angle point in the East line of the parcel described in 
the deed from Idolene Hooper Hale Ewell to Jennings E. Heffelfinger, dated June 28, 1933, and recorded June 
30, 1933, in Volume 345 of Official Records, at Pages 240; thence along said East line South 40 degrees 05 
minutes 15 seconds West, 110.75 feet; South 5 degrees 36 minutes 45 seconds West, 160.6 feet; South 28 
degrees 35 minutes 15 seconds East, 237.32 feet and South 13 degrees 49 minutes 45 seconds West, 91 feet to 
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an angle point on the North line of the 1.473 acre parcel of land described in the deed from Idolene Hooper Hale 
Ewell to W. H. George, dated September 25, 1934, and recorded September 27, 1934, in Volume 367 of Official 
Records, at Page 444; thence South 77 degrees 38 minutes East along said North line, 41.62 feet to the most 
Northerly corner of the 1.298 acre parcel of land described in the deed from Idolene Hooper Hale Ewell to Fred 
Newton, dated January 3, 1935, and recorded January 15, 1935, in Volume 381 of Official Records, at Page 317; 
thence along the North line of said Newton parcel (381 OR 317) being along a fence line South 77 degrees 38 
minutes East, 252.9 feet and South 70 degrees 53 minutes 30 seconds East, 204.2 feet to an iron pipe on the 
East line of said Newton parcel (381 OR 317); thence South 12 degrees 47 minutes East along said East line, 
being along a fence line, 49.7 feet to an iron pipe at the most Easterly corner of said Newton parcel (381 OR 317) 
being on a fence line on the North line of a 12 feet in width roadway; thence South 77 degrees 33 minutes West 
along the South line of said Newton parcel (381 OR 317) being along the North line of said roadway, 348.67 feet 
to the South line of the 45.15 acre parcel of land described as Parcel Two in the deed from J. B. John, et ux, to 
Idolene Hooper Hale, dated March 15, 1928, and recorded March 24, 1928, in Volume 133 of Official Records, at 
Page 220; thence North 82 degrees 38 minutes East along said South line to an angle point on the East line of 
said Lot 39, being at the intersection of the Northerly terminus of the course North 3 degrees West, 712.9 feet 
with the Westerly terminus of the course North 48 degrees 41 minutes 30 seconds East, 665.2 feet, as 
designated on said Map (3 M 56) ; thence along the exterior boundary of said Lot 39 as follows:


North 48 degrees 41 minutes 30 seconds East, 665.2 feet;
South 48 degrees 18 minutes 30 seconds East, 64 feet;
North 48 degrees 26 minutes 30 seconds East, 62 feet;
North 47 degrees 33 minutes 30 seconds West, 63.4 feet;
North 48 degrees 41 minutes 30 seconds East, 238.4 feet and North 64 degrees 55 minutes 30 seconds West, 
790.6 feet to the point of beginning.


Parcel Three: (CITY OF WALNUT CREEK) 
Lots 58, 59, and 60 and portion of Lots 57 and 61, as designated on the Map entitled "Map of Walden, Contra 
Costa County, California," which Map was filed in the office of the Recorder of the County of Contra Costa, State 
of California, on September 12, 1917, in Volume 16 of Maps, at Page 333, said portion of Lots 57 and 61 lying 
Northerly of a line described as follows:


Beginning on the East line of said Lot 61 distant thereon North 2 degrees 58 minutes 30 seconds West, 209.81 
feet from the most Southerly corner of said Lot, 61; thence from said point of beginning leaving said East line 
South 81 degrees 56 minutes 25 seconds West, 317.27 feet to the East line of Fair Oak Street.


APN: 172-080-007; 173-042-009


EXCEPTING FROM TRACT TWO ABOVE DESCRIBED, the following property and interests heretofore 
conveyed:


1. All the property and interests (particularly the 1 acre parcel of land described as "Tract No. 2" therein) 
conveyed by the deed from Idolene Hooper Hale Ewell and husband to the United States of America, dated June 
19, 1939, and recorded August 11, 1939, in Volume 516 of Official Records, at Page 285, records of Contra 
Costa County; but not excepting therefrom any rights reserved to the grantor in said deed which may be 
appurtenant to any part of the real property hereby conveyed.


2. All the property and interests conveyed by Idolene Hooper Hale, formerly sometimes known as Idolene Hooper 
Ewell, to Sheridan Winfield Hale, by deed dated December 28, 1949, recorded January 13, 1950, in Volume 1490 
of Official Records, at Page 442, records of Contra Costa County.


3. All the property and interests conveyed by Idolene Hooper Hale Ewell to Edna D. Coryell, by deed dated 
September 8, 1950, recorded September 13, 1950, in Volume 1632 of Official Records, at Page 114, records of 
Contra Costa County.
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TRACT THREE:


The south one-half of Seven Hills Ranch Road, formerly Walden Common, and the eastern one-half of 
Homestead Avenue, formerly Fair Oak Street, lying between the easterly line produced northerly of Lot 61, as 
said Lot, Common, and Street are shown on the Map of Walden, filed September 12, 1917, in Book 16 of Maps, 
Page 333, and the course produced westerly shown as South 81° 56’ 25” West in the Deed to Marie E. Burdick, 
recorded August 2, 1923, Book 446 of Deeds, Page 63.


TRACT FOUR:


Lot B of the   Map of Walden, filed September 12, 1917, in Book 16 of Maps, Page 333.


EXCEPTING THEREFROM:


That portion lying northerly of the course shown as “South 82° 30’ 30” West” in Parcel Two of the Deed to Idolene 
Hooper Hale, recorded May 24, 1926, in Book 133, Page 220, Official Records.


NOTE:  TRACTS THREE AND FOUR SHOWN HEREIN HAVE NOT BEEN LEGALLY CREATED IN THE 
PUBLIC RECORD AND ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY.
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Chicago Title Company


CLTA Preliminary Report Form (Modified 11/17/06) Last Saved:  8/23/2019 9:13 AM by MO2 
lPrelm (DSI Rev. 03/11/19) Page 7 Order No.: 15606633-156-TJK-JM


EXCEPTIONS


AT THE DATE HEREOF, ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED AND EXCEPTIONS TO COVERAGE IN ADDITION TO 
THE PRINTED EXCEPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS IN SAID POLICY FORM WOULD BE AS FOLLOWS:


1. Property taxes, which are a lien not yet due and payable, including any assessments collected with taxes 
to be levied for the fiscal year 2019-2020. 


2. Prior to closing, Escrow must contact the County Tax Collector's Office to confirm all  amounts owing, 
including current fiscal year taxes, supplemental taxes, escaped assessments and any delinquencies.


3. The lien of supplemental or escaped assessments of property taxes, if any, made pursuant to the 
provisions of Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 75) or Part 2, Chapter 3, Articles 3 and 4, 
respectively, of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California as a result of the transfer of title 
to the vestee named in Schedule A or as a result of changes in ownership or new construction occurring 
prior to Date of Policy.


3-A NOTE:  no taxes have been assessed for the 2018-2019 tax year for Tracts Three and Four described 
herein.


4. Water rights, claims or title to water, whether or not disclosed by the public records.


5. Rights of the public to any portion of the Land lying within the area commonly known as 


Any public street or roadway.


6. Covenants, conditions and restrictions but omitting any covenants or restrictions, if any, including but not 
limited to those based upon race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, familial status, marital status, 
disability, handicap, national origin, citizenship, immigration status, primary language, ancestry, source of 
income, gender, gender identity, gender expression, medical condition or genetic information, as set forth 
in applicable state or federal laws, except to the extent that said covenant or restriction is permitted by 
applicable law, as set forth in the document


Recording Date: October 26, 1910
Recording No: Book 160 Deeds, Page 11


Contains a reversionary clause


Affects: A portion of the Land described herein and other land.


7. Matters contained in that certain document


Entitled: Notice of Withdrawal of Offer of Dedication
Executed by: the Western Mortgage and Guaranty Company
Recording Date: March 6, 1912
Recording No: Book 404 Deeds, Page 485


Reference is hereby made to said document for full particulars.


7-A. Rights of the lot owners for roadway and utilities within Walden Tract, filed September 12, 1917, Book 16 
of Maps, Page 333
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8. Easement(s) for the purpose(s) shown below and rights incidental thereto, as granted in a document:


Granted to: Pacific Gas and Electric Company  
Purpose: public utilities 
Recording Date: June 19, 1933 
Recording No: Book 353, Page 19, Instrument No. 4760, Official Records
Affects: a portion of premises  


9. Easement(s) for the purpose(s) shown below and rights incidental thereto, as granted in a document:


Granted to: Pacific Gas and Electric Company  
Purpose: public utilities 
Recording Date: September 19, 1936
Recording No: Book 420, Page 365, Instrument No. 11684, Official Records 
Affects: a portion of premises  


10. Easement(s) for the purpose(s) shown below and rights incidental thereto, as granted in a document:


Granted to: Sheridan Winfield Hale 
Purpose: roadway and utilities
Recording Date: January 13, 1950
Recording No: Book 1490, Page 442, Instrument No. 1837, Official Records 
Affects: a portion of premises  


11. Matters contained in that certain document


Entitled: Deed
Dated: September 8, 1950
Executed by: Idolene Hooper Hale
Recording Date: September 13, 1950
Recording No: Book 1632, Page 114, Instrument No. 46818, Official Records 


Reference is hereby made to said document for full particulars.


12. Matters contained in that certain document


Entitled: Grant Deed
Dated: April 27, 1953
Executed by: The Children’s Hospital of the East Bay
Recording Date: May 15, 1951
Recording No: Book 1764, Page 87, Instrument No. 23716, Official Records 


Reference is hereby made to said document for full particulars.


13. Matters contained in that certain document


Entitled: Deed
Dated: December 30, 1953
Executed by: Idolene Hooper Hale
Recording Date: January 13, 1954
Recording No: Book 2253, Page 422, Instrument No. 1824, Official


Reference is hereby made to said document for full particulars.
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14. Easement(s) for the purpose(s) shown below and rights incidental thereto, as granted in a document:


Granted to: North Walnut Creek Emergency Flood Control District 
Purpose: flood control
Recording Date: April 17, 1961
Recording No: Book 3847, Page 557, Instrument No. 25514, Official Records 
Affects: a portion of premises  


15. Easement(s) for the purpose(s) shown below and rights incidental thereto as condemned by an 
instrument,


Entitled: Final Order of Condemnation 
Court: Superior Court of California, County of Contra Costa 
Case No.: C05-01237 
In favor of: City of Walnut Creek 
Purpose: storm drain 
Recording Date: November 3, 2005
Recording No: Instrument No. 2005-427444, Official Records  
Affects: a portion of premises 


16. The herein described Land is located in an area frequently subject to Land Conservation Contracts 
executed pursuant to the Williamson Act (Cal. Govt. Code §§ 51200 et seq.). Land Conservation 
Contracts restrict the land use to agricultural, recreational, open-space and other compatible uses. If the 
herein described Land is subject to a Land Conservation Contract, please notify the Title Department.


The Company reserves the right to add additional items and/or make further requirements.


17. The search did not disclose any open mortgages or deeds of trust of record, therefore the Company 
reserves the right to require further evidence to confirm that the property is unencumbered, and further 
reserves the right to make additional requirements or add additional items or exceptions upon receipt of 
the requested evidence.


18. Any rights of the parties in possession of a portion of, or all of, said Land, which rights are not disclosed 
by the public records.


The Company will require, for review, a full and complete copy of any unrecorded agreement, contract, 
license and/or lease, together with all supplements, assignments and amendments thereto, before issuing 
any policy of title insurance without excepting this item from coverage.


The Company reserves the right to except additional items and/or make additional requirements after 
reviewing said documents.


19. Matters which may be disclosed by an inspection and/or by a correct ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey of 
said Land that is satisfactory to the Company, and/or by inquiry of the parties in possession thereof.


PLEASE REFER TO THE “INFORMATIONAL NOTES” AND “REQUIREMENTS” SECTIONS WHICH 
FOLLOW FOR INFORMATION NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THIS TRANSACTION.


END OF EXCEPTIONS
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REQUIREMENTS SECTION


1. The Company will require the following documents for review prior to the issuance of any title insurance 
predicated upon a conveyance or encumbrance from the entity named below:


Limited Liability Company: Seven Hills Ranch I, LLC


a) A copy of its operating agreement, if any, and all amendments, supplements and/or modifications 
thereto, certified by the appropriate manager or member.


b) If a domestic Limited Liability Company, a copy of its Articles of Organization and all amendments 
thereto with the appropriate filing stamps. 


c) If the Limited Liability Company is member-managed, a full and complete current list of members 
certified by the appropriate manager or member.


d) A current dated certificate of good standing from the proper governmental authority of the state in 
which the entity is currently domiciled.


e) If less than all members, or managers, as appropriate, will be executing the closing documents, 
furnish evidence of the authority of those signing. 


f) If Limited Liability Company is a Single Member Entity, a Statement of Information for the Single 
Member will be required.


g) Each member and manager of the LLC without an Operating Agreement must execute in the 
presence of a notary public the Certificate of California LLC (Without an Operating Agreement) 
Status and Authority form.


2. The Company will require the following documents for review prior to the issuance of any title insurance 
predicated upon a conveyance or encumbrance from the entity named below:


Limited Liability Company: Seven Hills Ranch II, LLC


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
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3. The Company will require a complete copy of the trust agreement and any amendments thereto, certified 
by the trustee(s) to be a true and complete copy, with respect to the hereinafter named trust.


Name of Trust: the Trust established under the will of Sheridan W. Hale of the benefit of Clarissa 
Hale


4. The Company will require a complete copy of the trust agreement and any amendments thereto, certified 
by the trustee(s) to be a true and complete copy, with respect to the hereinafter named trust.


Name of Trust: the Hale Family 2015 Trust


5. The Company will require that an Owner’s Affidavit be completed by the party(s) named below before the 
issuance of any policy of title insurance.


Party(s): vestees


The Company reserves the right to add additional items or make further requirements after review of the 
requested Affidavit.


END OF REQUIREMENTS
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INFORMATIONAL NOTES SECTION


1. None of the items shown in this report will cause the Company to decline to attach CLTA Endorsement 
Form 100 to an Extended Coverage Loan Policy, when issued.


2. The Company is not aware of any matters which would cause it to decline to attach CLTA Endorsement 
Form 116 indicating that there is located on said Land Commercial properties, known as Seven Hills 
Ranch, located within the city of Walnut Creek, California, , to an Extended Coverage Loan Policy.


3. Note:  The policy of title insurance will include an arbitration provision. The Company or the insured may 
demand arbitration. Arbitrable matters may include, but are not limited to, any controversy or claim 
between the Company and the insured arising out of or relating to this policy, any service of the Company 
in connection with its issuance or the breach of a policy provision or other obligation. Please ask your 
escrow or title officer for a sample copy of the policy to be issued if you wish to review the arbitration 
provisions and any other provisions pertaining to your Title Insurance coverage.


4. Notice: Please be aware that due to the conflict between federal and state laws concerning the 
cultivation, distribution, manufacture or sale of marijuana, the Company is not able to close or insure any 
transaction involving Land that is associated with these activities.


5. Pursuant to Government Code Section 27388.1, as amended and effective as of 1-1-2018, a 
Documentary Transfer Tax (DTT) Affidavit may be required to be completed and submitted with each 
document when DTT is being paid or when an exemption is being claimed from paying the tax. If a 
governmental agency is a party to the document, the form will not be required. DTT Affidavits may be 
available at a Tax Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder.


6. Due to the special requirements of SB 50 (California Public Resources Code Section 8560 et seq.), any 
transaction that includes the conveyance of title by an agency of the United States must be approved in 
advance by the Company’s State Counsel, Regional Counsel, or one of their designees.


7. Note:  The only conveyance(s) affecting said Land, which recorded within 24 months of the date of this 
report, are as follows:


Grantor: Kenneth W. Hale and Norman Hale, as Co-Executors of the Will of Sheridan W. 
Hale, deceased, pursuant to the authority in the Order For Final Distribution; For 
Statutory Fees; For Reimbursement of Costs; Approval of Report of 
Administration From July 1, 2016 Through August 31, 2017; Request to Hold 
Cash Reserve, made in the matter of the Estate of Sheridan W. Hale, Case 
Number P 15-0397, on January 18, 2018, in the Superior Court of the State of 
California, for the County of Contra Costa


Grantee: Kenneth Hale, as to an undivided 1/3 interest, Norman Hale, as to an undivided 
1/3 interest, and Kenneth Hale and Norman Hale, The Trustees of the Trust 
established under the will of Sheridan W. Hale for the benefit of Clarissa Hale, as 
to an undivided 1/3 interest 


Recording Date: February 22, 2018
Recording No: Instrument No. 2018-27339, Official Records 


Grantor: Kenneth Hale, as to an undivided 1/3 interest, Norman Hale, as to an undivided 
1/3 interest, and Kenneth Hale and Norman Hale, The Trustees of the Trust 
established under the will of Sheridan W. Hale for the benefit of Clarissa Hale, as 
to an undivided 1/3 interest 


Grantee: Seven Hills Ranch I, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company  
Recording Date: July 30, 2018
Recording No: Instrument No. 2018-120887, Official Records 
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Grantor: Clarissa L. Hale, Norman B. Hale and Kenneth W. Hale as Trustees of the Hale 
Family 2015 Trust 


Grantee: Kenneth Hale, as to an undivided 1/3 interest, Norman Hale, as to an undivided 
1/3 interest, and Clarissa Hale, as to an undivided 1/3 interest, as tenants in 
common


Recording Date: May 6, 2019
Recording No: Instrument No. 2019-64217, Official Records 


Grantor: Kenneth Hale, as to an undivided 1/3 interest, Norman Hale, as to an undivided 
1/3 interest, and Clarissa Hale, as to an undivided 1/3 interest, as tenants in 
common 


Grantee: Seven Hills Ranch II, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company  
Recording Date: May 6, 2019
Recording No: Instrument No. 2019-64218, Official Records


8. Note:  The charge for a policy of title insurance, when issued through this title order, will be based on the 
Basic Title Insurance Rate.


9. Note:  Property taxes for the fiscal year shown below are PAID. For proration purposes the amounts 
were:


Tax Identification No.: 172-080-007
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019
1st Installment: $2,635.13
2nd Installment: $2,635.13
Land: $446,024.00
Code Area: 98010


10. Note:  Property taxes for the fiscal year shown below are PAID. For proration purposes the amounts 
were:


Tax Identification No.: 172-150-012
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019
1st Installment: $2,143.62
2nd Installment: $2,143.62
Land: $349,049.00
Improvements: $6,433.00
Code Area: 98010


11. Note:  Property taxes for the fiscal year shown below are PAID. For proration purposes the amounts 
were:


Tax Identification No.: 173-042-009
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019
1st Installment: $420.10
2nd Installment: $420.10
Land: $39,834.00
Code Area: 09001



https://smartviewonline.net/Root/webstorage/orderguid/BEFF5B0D-8D06-4202-83D1-7194E886C068/DOc+2019-64217.pdf

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

https://smartviewonline.net/Root/webstorage/orderguid/F1019A0D-A3A3-4846-B07C-3EF19E7DED1A/DOC+2019-64218.pdf

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

https://smartviewonline.net/Root/webstorage/orderguid/3C4B5109-D488-4C50-A6C4-CB1EE663C312/Taxes.pdf

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


INFORMATIONAL NOTES
(Continued)


CLTA Preliminary Report Form (Modified 11/17/06) Last Saved:  8/23/2019 9:13 AM by MO2
lPrelm (DSI Rev. 03/11/19) Page 14 Order No.: 15606633-156-TJK-JM


END OF INFORMATIONAL NOTES


Jeff Martin/mo2


MO/mo/08-21-2019 amended to add Tract Three and Four (roadway parcels)







Wire Fraud Alert Page 1
Original Effective Date:  5/11/2017
Current Version Date:  5/11/2017 WIRE0016 (DSI Rev. 12/07/17)


TM and © Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and/or an affiliate. All rights reserved


Wire Fraud Alert
This Notice is not intended to provide legal or professional advice. If you have any questions, please consult with a lawyer.


All parties to a real estate transaction are targets for wire fraud and many have lost hundreds of thousands of dollars 
because they simply relied on the wire instructions received via email, without further verification. If funds are to be 
wired in conjunction with this real estate transaction, we strongly recommend verbal verification of wire 
instructions through a known, trusted phone number prior to sending funds.


In addition, the following non‐exclusive self‐protection strategies are recommended to minimize exposure to possible wire 
fraud.


 NEVER RELY on emails purporting to change wire instructions. Parties to a transaction rarely change wire 
instructions in the course of a transaction.


 ALWAYS VERIFY wire instructions, specifically the ABA routing number and account number, by calling the party 
who sent the instructions to you. DO NOT use the phone number provided in the email containing the instructions, 
use phone numbers you have called before or can otherwise verify. Obtain the phone number of relevant 
parties to the transaction as soon as an escrow account is opened. DO NOT send an email to verify as the 
email address may be incorrect or the email may be intercepted by the fraudster. 


 USE COMPLEX EMAIL PASSWORDS that employ a combination of mixed case, numbers, and symbols. Make 
your passwords greater than eight (8) characters. Also, change your password often and do NOT reuse the same 
password for other online accounts. 


 USE MULTI-FACTOR AUTHENTICATION for email accounts. Your email provider or IT staff may have specific 
instructions on how to implement this feature. 


For more information on wire‐fraud scams or to report an incident, please refer to the following links:


Federal Bureau of Investigation: Internet Crime Complaint Center:
http://www.fbi.gov http://www.ic3.gov



http://www.fbi.gov/

http://www.ic3.gov/
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FIDELITY NATIONAL FINANCIAL, INC. 
PRIVACY NOTICE


Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and its majority-owned subsidiary companies (collectively, “FNF,” “our,” or “we”) respect and are 
committed to protecting your privacy. This Privacy Notice explains how we collect, use, and protect personal information, when and to 
whom we disclose such information, and the choices you have about the use and disclosure of that information.


Types of Information Collected
We may collect two types of information from you: Personal Information and Browsing Information.


Personal Information. FNF may collect the following categories of Personal Information:
 contact information (e.g., name, address, phone number, email address);
 demographic information (e.g., date of birth, gender, marital status);
 identity information (e.g., Social Security Number, driver’s license, passport, or other government ID number);
 financial account information (e.g., loan or bank account information); and
 other personal information necessary to provide products or services to you.


Browsing Information. FNF may automatically collect the following types of Browsing Information when you access an FNF website, 
online service, or application (each an “FNF Website”) from your Internet browser, computer, and/or mobile device:


 Internet Protocol (IP) address and operating system; 
 browser version, language, and type; 
 domain name system requests; and 
 browsing history on the FNF Website, such as date and time of your visit to the FNF Website and visits to the pages within the 


FNF Website 


How Personal Information is Collected
We may collect Personal Information about you from: 


 information we receive from you on applications or other forms; 
 information about your transactions with FNF, our affiliates, or others; and 
 information we receive from consumer reporting agencies and/or governmental entities, either directly from these entities or 


through others. 


How Browsing Information is Collected
If you visit or use an FNF Website, Browsing Information may be collected during your visit. Like most websites, our servers 
automatically log each visitor to the FNF Website and may collect the Browsing Information described above. We use Browsing 
Information for system administration, troubleshooting, fraud investigation, and to improve our websites. Browsing Information generally 
does not reveal anything personal about you, though if you have created a user account for an FNF Website and are logged into that 
account, the FNF Website may be able to link certain browsing activity to your user account. 


Other Online Specifics
Cookies. When you visit an FNF Website, a “cookie” may be sent to your computer. A cookie is a small piece of data that is sent to your 
Internet browser from a web server and stored on your computer’s hard drive. Information gathered using cookies helps us improve 
your user experience. For example, a cookie can help the website load properly or can customize the display page based on your 
browser type and user preferences. You can choose whether or not to accept cookies by changing your Internet browser settings. Be 
aware that doing so may impair or limit some functionality of the FNF Website. 


Web Beacons. We use web beacons to determine when and how many times a page has been viewed. This information is used to 
improve our websites. 


Do Not Track. Currently our FNF Websites do not respond to “Do Not Track” features enabled through your browser. 


Links to Other Sites. FNF Websites may contain links to other websites. FNF is not responsible for the privacy practices or the content 
of any of those other websites. We advise you to read the privacy policy of every website you visit. 


Use of Personal Information
FNF uses Personal Information for three main purposes:


 To provide products and services to you or in connection with a transaction involving you.
 To improve our products and services.
 To communicate with you about our, our affiliates’, and third parties’ products and services, jointly or independently.


When Information Is Disclosed
We may make disclosures of your Personal Information and Browsing Information in the following circumstances: 


 to enable us to detect or prevent criminal activity, fraud, material misrepresentation, or nondisclosure; 
 to nonaffiliated service providers who provide or perform services or functions on our behalf and who agree to use the 


information only to provide such services or functions; 
 to nonaffiliated third party service providers with whom we perform joint marketing, pursuant to an agreement with them to 


jointly market financial products or services to you; 
 to law enforcement or authorities in connection with an investigation, or in response to a subpoena or court order; or 
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 in the good-faith belief that such disclosure is necessary to comply with legal process or applicable laws, or to protect the 
rights, property, or safety of FNF, its customers, or the public. 


The law does not require your prior authorization and does not allow you to restrict the disclosures described above. Additionally, we 
may disclose your information to third parties for whom you have given us authorization or consent to make such disclosure. We do not 
otherwise share your Personal Information or Browsing Information with nonaffiliated third parties, except as required or permitted by 
law. 


We reserve the right to transfer your Personal Information, Browsing Information, and any other information, in connection with the sale 
or other disposition of all or part of the FNF business and/or assets, or in the event of bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, 
receivership, or an assignment for the benefit of creditors. By submitting Personal Information and/or Browsing Information to FNF, you 
expressly agree and consent to the use and/or transfer of the foregoing information in connection with any of the above described 
proceedings. 


Please see “Choices With Your Information” to learn the disclosures you can restrict. 


Security of Your Information
We maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards to guard your Personal Information. We limit access to nonpublic personal 
information about you to employees who need to know that information to do their job. When we provide Personal Information to others 
as discussed in this Privacy Notice, we expect that they process such information in compliance with our Privacy Notice and in 
compliance with applicable privacy laws.


Choices With Your Information
If you do not want FNF to share your information with our affiliates to directly market to you, you may send an “opt out” request by 
email, phone, or physical mail as directed at the end of this Privacy Notice. We do not share your Personal Information with nonaffiliates 
for their use to direct market to you. 


Whether you submit Personal Information or Browsing Information to FNF is entirely up to you. If you decide not to submit Personal 
Information or Browsing Information, FNF may not be able to provide certain services or products to you.


For California Residents: We will not share your Personal Information and Browsing Information with nonaffiliated third parties, except 
as permitted by California law. 


For Nevada Residents: You may be placed on our internal Do Not Call List by calling (888) 934-3354 or by contacting us via the 
information set forth at the end of this Privacy Notice. Nevada law requires that we also provide you with the following contact 
information: Bureau of Consumer Protection, Office of the Nevada Attorney General, 555 E. Washington St., Suite 3900, Las Vegas, 
NV 89101; Phone number: (702) 486-3132; email: BCPINFO@ag.state.nv.us.


For Oregon Residents: We will not share your Personal Information and Browsing Information with nonaffiliated third parties for 
marketing purposes, except after you have been informed by us of such sharing and had an opportunity to indicate that you do not want 
a disclosure made for marketing purposes.


For Vermont Residents: We will not share information about your creditworthiness to our affiliates and will not disclose your personal 
information, financial information, credit report, or health information to nonaffiliated third parties to market to you, other than as 
permitted by Vermont law, unless you authorize us to make those disclosures.


Information From Children
The FNF Websites are meant for adults and are not intended or designed to attract persons under the age of eighteen (18).We do not 
collect Personal Information from any person that we know to be under the age of thirteen (13) without permission from a parent or 
guardian.


International Users
FNF’s headquarters is located within the United States. If you reside outside the United States and choose to provide Personal 
Information or Browsing Information to us, please note that we may transfer that information outside of your country of residence for any 
of the purposes described in this Privacy Notice. By providing FNF with your Personal Information and/or Browsing Information, you 
consent to our collection, transfer, and use of such information in accordance with this Privacy Notice.


FNF Website Services for Mortgage Loans
Certain FNF companies provide services to mortgage loan servicers, including hosting websites that collect customer information on 
behalf of mortgage loan servicers (the “Service Websites”). The Service Websites may contain links to both this Privacy Notice and the 
mortgage loan servicer or lender’s privacy notice. The sections of this Privacy Notice titled When Information is Disclosed, Choices with 
Your Information, and Accessing and Correcting Information do not apply to the Service Websites. The mortgage loan servicer or 
lender’s privacy notice governs use, disclosure, and access to your Personal Information. FNF does not share Personal Information 
collected through the Service Websites, except (1) as required or authorized by contract with the mortgage loan servicer or lender, or 
(2) as required by law or in the good-faith belief that such disclosure is necessary to comply with a legal process or applicable law, to 
enforce this Privacy Notice, or to protect the rights, property, or safety of FNF or the public.
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Your Consent To This Privacy Notice; Notice Changes
By submitting Personal Information and/or Browsing Information to FNF, you consent to the collection and use of the information in 
accordance with this Privacy Notice. We may change this Privacy Notice at any time. The revised Privacy Notice, showing the new 
revision date, will be posted on the FNF Website. Each time you provide information to us following any amendment of this Privacy 
Notice, your provision of information to us will signify your assent to and acceptance of the terms of the revised Privacy Notice for all 
previously collected information and information collected from you in the future. We may use comments, information or feedback that 
you submit to us in any manner that we may choose without notice or compensation to you.


Accessing and Correcting Information; Contact Us
If you have questions, would like to access or correct your Personal Information, or want to opt-out of information sharing for affiliate 
marketing, send your requests via email to privacy@fnf.com, by phone to (888) 934-3354, or by mail to:


Fidelity National Financial, Inc.
601 Riverside Avenue


Jacksonville, Florida 32204
Attn: Chief Privacy Officer







Notice of Available Discounts


Pursuant to Section 2355.3 in Title 10 of the California Code of Regulations Fidelity National Financial, Inc. and its 
subsidiaries (“FNF”) must deliver a notice of each discount available under our current rate filing along with the delivery of 
escrow instructions, a preliminary report or commitment. Please be aware that the provision of this notice does not 
constitute a waiver of the consumer’s right to be charged the field rate. As such, your transaction may not qualify for the 
below discounts.


You are encouraged to discuss the applicability of one or more of the below discounts with a Company representative. 
These discounts are generally described below; consult the rate manual for a full description of the terms, conditions and 
requirements for each discount. These discounts only apply to transaction involving services rendered by the FNF Family 
of Companies. This notice only applies to transactions involving property improved with a one-to-four family residential 
dwelling.


FNF Underwritten Title Company FNF Underwriter
FNTC - Chicago Title Company
FNTCCA –Fidelity National Title Company of California


CTIC - Chicago Title Insurance Company 


Available Discounts
CREDIT FOR PRELIMINARY REPORTS AND/OR COMMITMENTS ON SUBSEQUENT POLICIES (CTIC)
Where no major change in the title has occurred since the issuance of the original report or commitment, the order may be 
reopened within 12 or 36 months and all or a portion of the charge previously paid for the report or commitment may be 
credited on a subsequent policy charge.


DISASTER LOANS (CTIC)
The charge for a lender’s Policy (Standard or Extended coverage) covering the financing or refinancing by an owner of 
record, within 24 months of the date of a declaration of a disaster area by the government of the United States or the 
State of California on any land located in said area, which was partially or totally destroyed in the disaster, will be 50% of 
the appropriate title insurance rate.


CHURCHES OR CHARITABLE NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS (CTIC)
On properties used as a church or for charitable purposes within the scope of the normal activities of such entities, 
provided said charge is normally the church’s obligation the charge for an owner’s policy shall be 50% to 70% of the 
appropriate title insurance rate, depending on the type of coverage selected. The charge for a lender’s policy shall be 40% 
to 50% of the appropriate title insurance rate, depending on the type of coverage selected.







CA Discount Notice Effective Date:  12/02/2014
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ATTACHMENT ONE


CALIFORNIA LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION
STANDARD COVERAGE POLICY – 1990


EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE


The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, 
attorneys' fees or expenses which arise by reason of:
1. (a) Any law, ordinance or governmental regulation (including but not limited to building or zoning laws, ordinances, or regulations) 


restricting, regulating, prohibiting or relating (i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the land; (ii) the character, dimensions or 
location of any improvement now or hereafter erected on the land; (iii) a separation in ownership or a change in the 
dimensions or area of the land or any parcel of which the land is or was a part; or (iv) environmental protection, or the effect of 
any violation of these laws, ordinances or governmental regulations, except to the extent that a notice of the enforcement 
thereof or a notice of a defect, lien, or encumbrance resulting from a violation or alleged violation affecting the land has been 
recorded in the public records at Date of Policy.


(b) Any governmental police power not excluded by (a) above, except to the extent that a notice of the exercise thereof or notice 
of a defect, lien or encumbrance resulting from a violation or alleged violation affecting the land has been recorded in the 
public records at Date of Policy.


2. Rights of eminent domain unless notice of the exercise thereof has been recorded in the public records at Date of Policy, but not 
excluding from coverage any taking which has occurred prior to Date of Policy which would be binding on the rights of a purchaser 
for value without knowledge.


3. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters:
(a) whether or not recorded in the public records at Date of Policy, but created, suffered, assumed or agreed to by the insured 


claimant;
(b) not known to the Company, not recorded in the public records at Date of Policy, but known to the insured claimant and not 


disclosed in writing to the Company by the insured claimant prior to the date the insured claimant became an insured under 
this policy;


(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the insured claimant;
(d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy; or
(e) resulting in loss or damage which would not have been sustained if the insured claimant had paid value for the insured 


mortgage or for the estate or interest insured by this policy.
4. Unenforceability of the lien of the insured mortgage because of the inability or failure of the insured at Date of Policy, or the inability 


or failure of any subsequent owner of the indebtedness, to comply with the applicable doing business laws of the state in which the 
land is situated.


5. Invalidity or unenforceability of the lien of the insured mortgage, or claim thereof, which arises out of the transaction evidenced by 
the insured mortgage and is based upon usury or any consumer credit protection or truth in lending law.


6. Any claim, which arises out of the transaction vesting in the insured the estate of interest insured by this policy or the transaction 
creating the interest of the insured lender, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency or similar creditors' 
rights laws.


EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE - SCHEDULE B, PART I


This policy does not insure against loss or damage (and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys' fees or expenses) which arise by 
reason of:
1. Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or 


assessments on real property or by the public records.
Proceedings by a public agency which may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown 
by the records of such agency or by the public records.


2. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims which are not shown by the public records but which could be ascertained by an inspection of 
the land or which may be asserted by persons in possession thereof.


3. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the public records.
4. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area, encroachments, or any other facts which a correct survey would 


disclose, and which are not shown by the public records.
5. (a) Unpatented mining claims;  (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof;  (c) water 


rights, claims or title to water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a), (b) or (c) are shown by the public records.
6. Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor or material not shown by the public records.


CLTA HOMEOWNER'S POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE (12-02-13)
ALTA HOMEOWNER'S POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE


EXCLUSIONS


In addition to the Exceptions in Schedule B, You are not insured against loss, costs, attorneys' fees, and expenses resulting from: 
1. Governmental police power, and the existence or violation of those portions of any law or government regulation concerning: 


a. building; 
b. zoning; 
c. land use;
d. improvements on the Land; 
e. land division; and 







f. environmental protection. 
This Exclusion does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 8.a., 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20, 23 or 27. 


2. The failure of Your existing structures, or any part of them, to be constructed in accordance with applicable building codes.  This 
Exclusion does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 14 or 15. 


3. The right to take the Land by condemning it.  This Exclusion does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 17. 
4. Risks: 


a. that are created, allowed, or agreed to by You, whether or not they are recorded in the Public Records; 
b. that are Known to You at the Policy Date, but not to Us, unless they are recorded in the Public Records at the Policy Date; 
c. that result in no loss to You; or 
d. that first occur after the Policy Date - this does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 7, 8.e., 25, 26, 27 or 28. 


5. Failure to pay value for Your Title.
6. Lack of a right: 


a. to any land outside the area specifically described and referred to in paragraph 3 of Schedule A; and 
b. in streets, alleys, or waterways that touch the Land. 
This Exclusion does not limit the coverage described in Covered Risk 11 or 21. 


7. The transfer of the Title to You is invalid as a preferential transfer or as a fraudulent transfer or conveyance under federal 
bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws.


8. Contamination, explosion, fire, flooding, vibration, fracturing, earthquake, or subsidence. 
9. Negligence by a person or an Entity exercising a right to extract or develop minerals, water, or any other substances.


LIMITATIONS ON COVERED RISKS


Your insurance for the following Covered Risks is limited on the Owner’s Coverage Statement as follows:
 For Covered Risk 16, 18, 19, and 21 Your Deductible Amount and Our Maximum Dollar Limit of Liability shown in Schedule A.


The deductible amounts and maximum dollar limits shown on Schedule A are as follows:


Your Deductible Amount
Our Maximum Dollar


Limit of Liability


Covered Risk 16:
1.00% % of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or


$2,500.00 (whichever is less) $ 10,000.00


Covered Risk 18:
1.00% % of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or


$5,000.00 (whichever is less) $ 25,000.00


Covered Risk 19:
1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or


$5,000.00 (whichever is less) $ 25,000.00


Covered Risk 21:
1.00% of Policy Amount Shown in Schedule A or


$2,500.00 (whichever is less) $ 5,000.00


2006 ALTA LOAN POLICY (06-17-06)


EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE


The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy, and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, 
attorneys' fees, or expenses that arise by reason of: 
1. (a) Any law, ordinance, permit, or governmental regulation (including those relating to building and zoning) restricting, regulating, 


prohibiting, or relating to
(i) the occupancy, use, or enjoyment of the Land; 
(ii) the character, dimensions, or location of any improvement erected on the Land; 
(iii) the subdivision of land; or
(iv) environmental protection; 
or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances, or governmental regulations.  This Exclusion 1(a) does not modify or 
limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 5. 


(b) Any governmental police power. This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk  6. 
2. Rights of eminent domain. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8.
3. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or other matters


(a) created, suffered, assumed, or agreed to by the Insured Claimant;
(b) not Known to the Company, not recorded in the Public Records at Date of Policy, but Known to the Insured Claimant and not 


disclosed in writing to the Company by the Insured Claimant prior to the date the Insured Claimant became an Insured under 
this policy;


(c) resulting in no loss or damage to the Insured Claimant; 
(d) attaching or created subsequent to Date of Policy (however, this does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered 


Risk 11, 13 or 14); or 
(e) resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if the Insured Claimant had paid value for the Insured 


Mortgage. 
4. Unenforceability of the lien of the Insured Mortgage because of the inability or failure of an Insured to comply with applicable doing-


business laws of the state where the Land is situated.
5. Invalidity or unenforceability in whole or in part of the lien of the Insured Mortgage that arises out of the transaction evidenced by 


the Insured Mortgage and is based upon usury or any consumer credit protection or truth-in-lending law.







6. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws, that the transaction 
creating the lien of the Insured Mortgage, is
(a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer, or
(b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in Covered Risk 13(b) of this policy.  


7. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching between 
Date of Policy and the date of recording of the Insured Mortgage in the Public Records.  This Exclusion does not modify or limit the 
coverage provided under Covered Risk 11(b).


The above policy form may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage.  In addition to the above Exclusions 
from Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the following Exceptions from Coverage:


EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE


(Except as provided in Schedule B - Part II,( t(or T)his policy does not insure against loss or damage, and the Company will not pay 
costs, attorneys’ fees or expenses, that arise by reason of:


(PART I


(The above policy form may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage.  In addition to the above Exclusions 
from Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the following Exceptions from Coverage:
1. (a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes or 


assessments on real property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public agency that may result in taxes or 
assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by the Public Records. 


2. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims that are not shown by the Public Records but that could be ascertained by an inspection of the 
Land or that may be asserted by persons in possession of the Land.


3. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records.
4. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an 


accurate and complete land survey of the Land and not shown by the Public Records.
5. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; (c) water rights, 


claims or title to water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a), (b), or (c) are shown by the Public Records.
6. Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor or material not shown by the Public Records.


PART II


In addition to the matters set forth in Part I of this Schedule, the Title is subject to the following matters, and the Company insures 
against loss or damage sustained in the event that they are not subordinate to the lien of the Insured Mortgage:)


2006 ALTA OWNER’S POLICY (06-17-06)


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


(b) Any governmental police power.  This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 6.
2. Rights of eminent domain.  This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 7 or 8.
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


Risk 9 and 10); or  
(e) resulting in loss or damage that would not have been sustained if the Insured Claimant had paid value for the Title.  


4. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws, that the transaction 
vesting the Title as shown in Schedule A, is
(a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer; or
(b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in Covered Risk 9 of this policy.


5. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching between 
Date of Policy and the date of recording of the deed or other instrument of transfer in the Public Records that vests Title as shown 
in Schedule A.


The above policy form may be issued to afford either Standard Coverage or Extended Coverage.  In addition to the above Exclusions 
from Coverage, the Exceptions from Coverage in a Standard Coverage policy will also include the following Exceptions from Coverage:


EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE







This policy does not insure against loss or damage, and the Company will not pay costs, attorneys’ fees or expenses, that arise by 
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


2. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims that are not shown in the Public Records but that could be ascertained by an inspection of the 
Land or that may be asserted by persons in possession of the Land.


3. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records.
4. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that would be disclosed by an 


accurate and complete land survey of the Land and that are not shown by the Public Records.
5. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof; (c) water rights, 


claims or title to water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a), (b), or (c) are shown by the Public Records.
6. Any lien or right to a lien for services, labor or material not shown by the Public Records.
7. (Variable exceptions such as taxes, easements, CC&R’s, etc. shown here.)


ALTA EXPANDED COVERAGE RESIDENTIAL LOAN POLICY (12-02-13)


EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE


The following matters are expressly excluded from the coverage of this policy and the Company will not pay loss or damage, costs, 
attorneys’ fees or expenses which arise by reason of: 
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
limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 5, 6, 13(c), 13(d), 14 or 16.


(b) Any governmental police power.  This Exclusion 1(b) does not modify or limit the coverage provided under Covered Risk 5, 6, 
13(c), 13(d), 14 or 16.


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


Risk 11, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 27 or 28); or   
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


the Insured Mortgage and is based upon usury, or any consumer credit protection or truth-in-lending law.  This Exclusion does not 
modify or limit the coverage provided in Covered Risk 26.


6. Any claim of invalidity, unenforceability or lack of priority of the lien of the Insured Mortgage as to Advances or modifications made 
after the Insured has Knowledge that the vestee shown in Schedule A is no longer the owner of the estate or interest covered by 
this policy. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided in Covered Risk 11. 


7. Any lien on the Title for real estate taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authority and created or attaching subsequent 
to Date of Policy. This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided in Covered Risk 11(b) or 25. 


8. The failure of the residential structure, or any portion of it, to have been constructed before, on or after Date of Policy in 
accordance with applicable building codes.  This Exclusion does not modify or limit the coverage provided in Covered Risk 5 or 6.


9. Any claim, by reason of the operation of federal bankruptcy, state insolvency, or similar creditors’ rights laws, that the transaction 
creating the lien of the Insured Mortgage, is
(a) a fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer, or
(b) a preferential transfer for any reason not stated in Covered Risk 27(b) of this policy. 


10. Contamination, explosion, fire, flooding, vibration, fracturing, earthquake, or subsidence. 
11. Negligence by a person or an Entity exercising a right to extract or develop minerals, water, or any other substances.


















































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
Date: Monday, April 13, 2020 10:39:33 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Thanks, Sandi, I missed it but will review and follow up.
 
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
Date: Monday, April 13, 2020 6:10:19 PM

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
Date: Wednesday, April 15, 2020 2:19:31 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

No worries.
 

From: Steve Waymire [mailto:Waymire@walnut-creek.org] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 15, 2020 2:04 PM
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
To: "Eric Zell"
Subject: RE: Question
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 3:40:33 PM

Are you looking for the CC report and/or Reso dated July 20, 1970?

Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic Development Director
City of Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main Street
Walnut Creek, CA  94595
(925) 943-5836
meyer@walnut-creek.org

-----Original Message-----
From: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com>
Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 3:24 PM
To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: Re: Question

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Map 4006 approved in May, 1970 was entitled “Map 4006 Heather Farms”.  I think the property we are involved
with has been referred to as Seven Hills Ranch.  The Grant Deed dated May14, 1970 and accepted by council action
on July 20, 1970 was from Equitable Savings & Loan Association to the City of WC, conveying the spite strip in
fee.

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

> On Apr 17, 2020, at 2:09 PM, Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:
>
> ﻿Yes I'm available.  Cell number is 925-899-1953
>
> Sandra Meyer
> Community and Economic Development Director City of Walnut Creek
> 1666 N. Main Street
> Walnut Creek, CA  94595
> (925) 943-5836
> meyer@walnut-creek.org
>
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com>
> Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 2:07 PM
> To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>; Sandra Meyer AICP
> <meyerfam@astound.net>
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
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 2:09:21 PM

Yes I'm available.  Cell number is 925-899-1953

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
To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>; Sandra Meyer AICP <meyerfam@astound.net>
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
Date: Saturday, April 18, 2020 1:38:57 PM

Hi Eric, Send me an email requesting the meeting to be set up. Address it to me, Ethan Bindernagel,
Planning Manager (bindernagel@walnut-creek.org) and Steve Waymire, City Engineer
(waymire@walnut-creek.org ). I will have my Executive Assistant, Ana Spinola (spinola@walnut-
creek.org) set up the Zoom meeting and ask her to invite the City Manager and the Assistant City
Manager to see if they want to attend. If you have specific dates and times you were looking for, let
me know that in the email so I can have Ana look for time on our calendars that match yours. Our
Planning Tech is doing research on the other items you asked about.
 

Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic Development Director
City of Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main Street
Walnut Creek, CA  94595
(925) 943-5836
meyer@walnut-creek.org
 

From: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com> 
Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 5:19 PM
To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
Subject: Re: Question
 

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Absolutely!  Thank you!
 
How should I proceed to set up the call next week to provide the briefing on the Senior
project? Who do you want on the call from city staff? We will need to do as zoom so we can
share a PPT.  

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 5:17 PM, Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

﻿ Mind if I forward what your looking for to my research guy? I will just copy and
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paste the info you are looking for into an email to him. 

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 5:04 PM, Eric Zell
<eric@zellandassociates.com> wrote:

﻿

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with
caution.

From Wilson Wendt, here is exactly what we are looking for:
 
          1). Top Priority: Minutes and staff report, conditions of
approval, etc. from the Planning Commission Meeting of 2/24/70
when the tentative map was approved;
         2). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports, rests, etc. from
the Council meeting in May, 1970 (around May 14) when the
Council approved  Final Map 4006; and
         3). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports, etc. and a copy
of the Council action on July 20, 1970 when the city accepted
conveyance of the 1’ strip, Lot A on Map 4006, from Equitable
Savings per the Grant Deed dated May 14, 1970.

Thanks for all your help!
 
Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 3:40 PM, Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

﻿Are you looking for the CC report and/or Reso dated
July 20, 1970?

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

Warning: this message is from an external user and
should be treated with caution.

Map 4006 approved in May, 1970 was entitled “Map
4006 Heather Farms”.  I think the property we are
involved with has been referred to as Seven Hills Ranch.
 The Grant Deed dated May14, 1970 and accepted by
council action on July 20, 1970 was from Equitable
Savings & Loan Association to the City of WC,
conveying the spite strip in fee.

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 2:09 PM, Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:
 
﻿Yes I'm available.  Cell number is 925-899-
1953
 
Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic Development
Director City of Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main Street
Walnut Creek, CA  94595
(925) 943-5836
meyer@walnut-creek.org
 
-----Original Message-----
From: Eric Zell
<eric@zellandassociates.com>
Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 2:07 PM

mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com


To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-
creek.org>; Sandra Meyer AICP
<meyerfam@astound.net>
Subject: Question
 
Warning: this message is from an external
user and should be treated with caution.
 
Sandy-
 
Hope you and the family are well. Are you
available for a quick call? Need to get some
information as part of the due diligence on
the Senior Development project on Hale
Ranch.  I don’t have a mobile number for
you.
 
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
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 5:19:28 PM

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
To: Eric Zell
Subject: Re: Question
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 5:17:11 PM

Mind if I forward what your looking for to my research guy? I will just copy and paste the info
you are looking for into an email to him. 

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 5:04 PM, Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com> wrote:

﻿
Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

From Wilson Wendt, here is exactly what we are looking for:

          1). Top Priority: Minutes and staff report, conditions of approval, etc. from
the Planning Commission Meeting of 2/24/70 when the tentative map was
approved;
         2). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports, rests, etc. from the Council
meeting in May, 1970 (around May 14) when the Council approved  Final Map
4006; and
         3). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports, etc. and a copy of the
Council action on July 20, 1970 when the city accepted conveyance of the 1’
strip, Lot A on Map 4006, from Equitable Savings per the Grant Deed dated May
14, 1970.

Thanks for all your help!

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 3:40 PM, Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-
creek.org> wrote:

﻿Are you looking for the CC report and/or Reso dated July 20, 1970?

Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic Development Director
City of Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main Street
Walnut Creek, CA  94595

mailto:Meyer@walnut-creek.org
mailto:eric@zellandassociates.com
x-apple-data-detectors://2/


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

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated
with caution.

Map 4006 approved in May, 1970 was entitled “Map 4006 Heather
Farms”.  I think the property we are involved with has been referred
to as Seven Hills Ranch.  The Grant Deed dated May14, 1970 and
accepted by council action on July 20, 1970 was from Equitable
Savings & Loan Association to the City of WC, conveying the spite
strip in fee.

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

Community and Economic Development Director City
of Walnut Creek

1666 N. Main Street

Walnut Creek, CA  94595

(925) 943-5836

meyer@walnut-creek.org



-----Original Message-----

From: Eric Zell <eric@zellandassociates.com>

Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020 2:07 PM

To: Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org>; Sandra
Meyer AICP 

<meyerfam@astound.net>

Subject: Question

Warning: this message is from an external user and
should be treated with caution.

Sandy-

Hope you and the family are well. Are you available for
a quick call? Need to get some information as part of the
due diligence on the Senior Development project on Hale
Ranch.  I don’t have a mobile number for you.

Thanks,

Eric Zell

zellandassociates.com

(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone



From: Eric Zell
To: Sandra Meyer
Subject: Re: Question
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 5:04:32 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

From Wilson Wendt, here is exactly what we are looking for:

          1). Top Priority: Minutes and staff report, conditions of approval, etc. from the
Planning Commission Meeting of 2/24/70 when the tentative map was approved;
         2). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports, rests, etc. from the Council meeting in
May, 1970 (around May 14) when the Council approved  Final Map 4006; and
         3). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports, etc. and a copy of the Council action on
July 20, 1970 when the city accepted conveyance of the 1’ strip, Lot A on Map 4006, from
Equitable Savings per the Grant Deed dated May 14, 1970.

Thanks for all your help!

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 3:40 PM, Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

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
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Map 4006 approved in May, 1970 was entitled “Map 4006 Heather Farms”.  I
think the property we are involved with has been referred to as Seven Hills
Ranch.  The Grant Deed dated May14, 1970 and accepted by council action on
July 20, 1970 was from Equitable Savings & Loan Association to the City of WC,
conveying the spite strip in fee.

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 2:09 PM, Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-
creek.org> wrote:

﻿Yes I'm available.  Cell number is 925-899-1953

Sandra Meyer

Community and Economic Development Director City of Walnut
Creek

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

Hope you and the family are well. Are you available for a quick call?
Need to get some information as part of the due diligence on the
Senior Development project on Hale Ranch.  I don’t have a mobile
number for you.

Thanks,

Eric Zell

zellandassociates.com

(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone



From: Eric Zell
To: Sandra Meyer
Subject: Re: Question
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 3:42:01 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Yes.  And attachments.

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
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 3:24:02 PM

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
Date: Friday, April 17, 2020 2:15:31 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Ok. Will call in a bit.

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
Date: Saturday, April 18, 2020 2:36:38 PM

Warning: this message is from an external user and should be treated with caution.

Thanks Sandy!

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 18, 2020, at 1:39 PM, Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-creek.org> wrote:

﻿
Hi Eric, Send me an email requesting the meeting to be set up. Address it to me, Ethan
Bindernagel, Planning Manager (bindernagel@walnut-creek.org) and Steve Waymire,
City Engineer (waymire@walnut-creek.org ). I will have my Executive Assistant, Ana
Spinola (spinola@walnut-creek.org) set up the Zoom meeting and ask her to invite the
City Manager and the Assistant City Manager to see if they want to attend. If you have
specific dates and times you were looking for, let me know that in the email so I can
have Ana look for time on our calendars that match yours. Our Planning Tech is doing
research on the other items you asked about.
 

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
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How should I proceed to set up the call next week to provide the briefing on the
Senior project? Who do you want on the call from city staff? We will need to do
as zoom so we can share a PPT.  

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 5:17 PM, Sandra Meyer <Meyer@walnut-
creek.org> wrote:

﻿ Mind if I forward what your looking for to my research guy? I will
just copy and paste the info you are looking for into an email to him. 

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 5:04 PM, Eric Zell
<eric@zellandassociates.com> wrote:

﻿

Warning: this message is from an external user and should
be treated with caution.

From Wilson Wendt, here is exactly what we are looking
for:
 
          1). Top Priority: Minutes and staff report,
conditions of approval, etc. from the Planning
Commission Meeting of 2/24/70 when the tentative map
was approved;
         2). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports,
rests, etc. from the Council meeting in May, 1970
(around May 14) when the Council approved  Final Map
4006; and
         3). Secondary Priority: Minutes, staff reports, etc.
and a copy of the Council action on July 20, 1970 when
the city accepted conveyance of the 1’ strip, Lot A on
Map 4006, from Equitable Savings per the Grant Deed
dated May 14, 1970.

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

﻿Are you looking for the CC report and/or
Reso dated July 20, 1970?

Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic Development
Director
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

Map 4006 approved in May, 1970 was
entitled “Map 4006 Heather Farms”.  I think
the property we are involved with has been
referred to as Seven Hills Ranch.  The Grant
Deed dated May14, 1970 and accepted by
council action on July 20, 1970 was from
Equitable Savings & Loan Association to
the City of WC, conveying the spite strip in
fee.

Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071
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Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 17, 2020, at 2:09 PM,
Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org>
wrote:
 
﻿Yes I'm available.  Cell number
is 925-899-1953
 
Sandra Meyer
Community and Economic
Development Director City of
Walnut Creek
1666 N. Main Street
Walnut Creek, CA  94595
(925) 943-5836
meyer@walnut-creek.org
 
-----Original Message-----
From: Eric Zell
<eric@zellandassociates.com>
Sent: Friday, April 17, 2020
2:07 PM
To: Sandra Meyer
<Meyer@walnut-creek.org>;
Sandra Meyer AICP
<meyerfam@astound.net>
Subject: Question
 
Warning: this message is from
an external user and should be
treated with caution.
 
Sandy-
 
Hope you and the family are
well. Are you available for a
quick call? Need to get some
information as part of the due
diligence on the Senior
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Development project on Hale
Ranch.  I don’t have a mobile
number for you.
 
Thanks,
Eric Zell
zellandassociates.com
(510) 414-8071
 
Sent from my iPhone
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